AGENDA

IMPERIAL VALLEY COLLEGE COUNCIL

Monday, June 13, 2011 - 2:30 P.M.
Administration Building Board Room

MEMBERSHIP

Taylor Ruhl, Administrative Representative

Sergio Lopez, Administrative Representative

Alfredo Cuellar, Administrative Representative

Jan Magno, Alternate Administrative Representative
Ted Ceasar, Alternate Administrative Representative

Daniel Gilison, Facuity Representative (Vice Chair)
Kevin White, Faculty Representative

Martha Garcia, Faculty Representative

Frances Beope, Alternate Facuity Representative

Laura Hartsock, Classified Representative

Miriam Trejo, Classified Representative

Michael Boyle, Classified Representative

Marilyn Boyle, Alternate Classified Representative
Matthew Thale, Alternate Classified Representative

Jessica Waddell, CMCA Representative (Chair)
Martha P. Garcia, Alternate CMCA Representative

Daniel Bermudez, Student Representative

Jesus Gallegos, Student Representative

Mitchelle Vasquez, Alternate Student Representative
Dr. Ed Gould, Ex Officio

Recording Secretary: Paula Saldana

MEMBERSHIP CHANGES

PUBLIC COMMENT
APPROVAL OF MINUTES DATED MONDAY, MAY 9, 2011

AREA REPORTS/UPDATES
College Council Report
Measure J and L Report
Program Review Update
Budget Update/Financial
ASG President Update
President’'s Update




Imperial Valley College June 13, 2011

College Council Page 2 of 2

COMMITTEE REPORTS

Academic Senate

Budget and Fiscal Planning Committee
Environmental Health & Safety Committee

Facilities and Environmental Improvement Committee
Marketing Committee

Policy & Procedure Committee

Staffing Committee

Student Affairs Committee

Technology Planning Committee

DISCUSSION AND INFORMATION ITEMS

1. 2011-2012 Tentative Budget — John Lau

2. BP 6301 Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Balance Definitions — John Lau
(Attachment A)

3. Strategic Technology Plan 2011-2015 — Todd Finnell (Attachment B)

ACTION ITEMS

1. 2011-2012 Tentative Budget — John Lau

2. BP 6301 Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Balance Definitions — John Lau
(Attachment A)

3. Strategic Technology Plan 2011-2015 — Todd Finnell (Attachment B)

ADJOURNMENT

2010-2011 College Council Meeting Schedule
at 2:30 p.m. in the Board Room

June 27




MINUTES



MINUTES

IMPERIAL VALLEY COLLEGE COUNCIL
Monday, May 9, 2011 - 2:30 P.M.
Administration Building Board Room

College Council Chair Waddell called the meeting to order at 2:32 p.m.

Council members in attendance were as follows:
Sergio Lopez, Administrative Representative
Jan Magno, Alternate Administrative Representative

Daniel Gilison, Faculty Representative
Kevin White, Faculty Representative

Miriam Trejo, Classified Representative
Marilyn Boyle, Alternate Classified Representative

Jessica Waddell, CMCA Representative (Chair)

Daniel Bermudez, Student Representative
Mitchelle Vasquez, Alternate Student Representative

Dr. Ed Gould, Ex Officio
Recording Secretary: Paula Saldana

Council members not in attendance were as follows:
Taylor Ruhl, Administrative Representative

Alfredo Cuellar, Administrative Representative

Ted Ceasar, Alternate Administrative Representative
Martha Garcia, Faculty Representative

Frances Beope, Alternate Faculty Representative
Laura Hartsock, Classified Representative

Michael Boyle, Classified Representative

Matthew Thale, Alternate Classified Representative
Martha P. Garcia, Alternate CMCA Representative
Joe Trejo, Student Representative

Jesus Gallegos, Student Representative

MEMBERSHIP CHANGES
Chair Waddell welcomed everyone back from Spring break.

Member Lopez stated the agenda contained a spelling error in the first name of Alternate
Student Representative Mitchell Vasquez; the correct spelling is Mitchelle.

PUBLIC COMMENT
There was no public comment.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES DATED MONDAY, APRIL 11, 2011
M/S Sergio Lopez/Marilyn Boyle to approve the Minutes of April 11, 2011.




Imperial Valley College May 9, 2011
College Council Minutes Page 2 of 5

Member Gilison addressed the following errors in the minutes:
e The minutes noted him as the vice chair; he was not vice chair at the time.
 The first name of the Alternate Student Representative is misspelled; the correct spelling
should be Mitchelle.

The minutes were approved with corrections by unanimous vote.

AREA REPORTS/UPDATES

College Council Report
Chair Waddell stated she had nothing to report.

Measure J and L Report
VP Lau reported as foliows:
¢ Would begin rebidding process for the 400 building, with other bids going to the Board
for approval.
¢ Voc Ed Project to begin late October/early November. This will be the first use of
Measure J money.
e Stated the art gallery would be opening soon. He stated no general fund money nor
bond money had been used to construct the art gallery. He stated the art gallery had
been constructed using redevelopment money.

Program Review
VP Berry reported as follows:
¢ Announced Deans Silva, Ceasar and Cuellar had taken the lead in overseeing the
Educational Master Plan supplement materials for 2011-2012.
» Resource groups are going over Comprehensive and Annual Reviews and ranking
priorities.
¢ Technology completed.
o Hoping to present a report to the Board at its June meeting.

ASG President Update

Student Representative Bermudez reported as follows:
¢ ASG helped CTA place the Emergency Crisis signs around campus.
o Elections were held and announced he had been elected new ASG President.
o Spring Awards Banquet will be held on June 3™.

President’s Update
President Gould reported the following:
e Congratulated Student Representative Bermudez for his election as new ASG President.
e Thanked CTA and ASG for their leadership in bringing attention to the budget crisis by
creating signs and placing them around campus.
¢ Announced a press conference with KYMA and other media outlets had been held in the
morning. Participants included himself, CTA President Gaylla Finnell, ASG President
Joe Trejo, and Student Representative Daniel Bermudez.
e Discussed the budget and stated more would be known after the Governor’s May revise
on May 16",
e Announced upcoming IVC events: Math Festival on May 13" EOPS Banquet on May
27", Student Awards Banquet on June 3™; commencement on June 11™



Imperial Valley College May 9, 2011
College Council Minutes Page 3 of 5

Stated in spite of the current budget situation, it is that time of the year that we celebrate
the accomplishments of the students.

Thanked Dean Silva and the Applied Sciences facuity and staff for the successful
Applied Sciences Expo held on April 14". He also thanked Pacific Fire for their
contribution on that day.

Announced two service clubs were on campus on Thursday and Friday and stated it was
always good to expose the college to community leaders.

Thanked VP Berry and Deans McNeece and Zhao for taking the lead on the
accreditation process.

Announced the State Emergency Planning and Preparedness Director for the
Chancelior’'s Office visited the campus last Thursday to review the emergency
preparedness, and made recommendations for improvement. The director’s
recommendations would be presented to the Facilities and Environmental Improvement
Committee.

Stated the Foundation was in the process of screening for fall scholarships.

The Foundation Osher scholarship dinner will take place on the evening of June 10™.
The Foundation is hoping to match the Osher scholarship of over $300,000.

Thanked staff for helping the IVC student who lost her house to a fire last month. He
stated the college rallied exceptionally well to provide resources so the student could
continue her education.

Stated IVC had received a grant for a dental assistant training program. He stated the
program would be the first for IVC, and would begin in the fall. He stated the program
woulid likely turn into a degree program over time.

IVC received an extension of the HUD grant, which would help businesses in the
community extend their plans, as well as provide more jobs for people in the community.
Thanked ASG for participation in “Hands Across California.” He stated IVC had the
largest turnout of students from the SDICCCA colleges, and had been featured in the
San Diego Union Tribune Newspaper.

Announced VP Finnell had been elected to the ETUDES Board of Directors. He stated
ETUDES had introduced two new tools for those interested in teaching online: a new
course map; and an activity meter.

Stated people from Sophia, a free social teaching and learning platform, had visited the
college in February. He stated Sophia offers many online services to students such as
tutoring. He stated Sophia may bring about a change in education through its free online
social learning services.

COMMITTEE REPORTS

Academic Senate
AS President White reported as foliows:

The Academic Senate completed credit by exam revisions.

Approved a survey that went out today regarding the campus reorganization. Is hoping
to have the data analyzed within the next two weeks and will report the results to the
campus.

Academic Senate annual fundraiser will take place on Friday, May 27". The tickets are
$20 each. He stated last year six scholarships were awarded: 4 for $500 and 2 for
$250.

Dr. Gould asked if the results of the survey would be aggregate data or broken up by divisions.

AS President White stated the data would be aggregate.



Imperial Valley College May 9,.2011

College Council Minutes Page 4 of 5

Budget and Fiscal Planning
Member White stated the committee would be meeting this week.

Facilities and Environmental Improvement Committee
Member Magno reported as follows:

e The committee met on April 18" and discussed the lack of posting areas in building
2700. Club and organizations are concerned that there is no place to post information.
She stated the quad and cafeteria areas are no longer the central location of the
campus. The committee is looking into putting up electronic or digital bulletin boards
inside the 2700 building.

e The committee also discussed green technology. The committee feels the coliege lacks
in ways of recycling or disposing of old equipment. Plans to work with VP Finnell in
developing plan to recycle old equipment.

¢ The committee discussed the campus map with Architect Jimmy Sanders to confirm the
names and numbers on the maps.

e The committee meets the third Monday of every month at 2:30 p.m. in the Board Room.

Policy & Procedure Committee
Member Magno stated the committee had met and discussed the BP and AP which were on

today’s College Council agenda.

Student Affairs Committee
Member Lopez stated the committee did not meet last week, but would be meeting next week.

Technology Planning Committee
VP Finnell reported as follows:

e The committee met before spring break and discussed the strategic technology plan and
the annual program reviews.

¢ The committee would be meeting this week and discussing campus wireless access and
a virtualized desktop infrastructure (VDI), which would be piloted with Labs 803 and 901
in the summer with a fall rollout. He stated VDI has the potential to change how desktop
computing resources are provided on campus. He gave an example of how faculty
would be able to log into a computer in any class and have access to their desktop. He
referred to it as a roaming profile.

e |s working on creating a consolidated Web Help Desk. He explained that the system
would be able to route the ticket to the right person based on the selection made and the
type of problem.

o He discussed software problems related to the managed print solution. For this reason,
a new software “Papercut” would be implemented. The new software would help solve
the immediate problem of managing network printers, and would help staff be informed
of the printers.

e Discussed opening the door to student printing. The Atlas Grant, in the long run, would
give students a viable way to print on campus and manage their print and copy jobs.

¢ He explained the fax implementation had been put on hold due to the major problems
with the phone system, but has now been reactivated. The new process is moving
towards a fax server model which would do away with the traditional stand alone fax
used with a phone line. He stated we needed to continue to support new fax technology.

e Continues to work on the Operational Data Store (ODS) system.



Imperial Valley College '  May 9, 2011

College Council Minutes Page 5 of 5

A question was asked regarding charges being applied to certain accounts for the use of the
new Xerox machines. VP Lau stated the matter was being researched by Purchasing Director
Kakiuchi.

DISCUSSION AND INFORMATION ITEMS
1. BP 3560 Alcoholic Beverages — Dr. Gould (Attachment A)
2. AP 3560 Alcoholic Beverages — Dr. Gould (Attachment B)

Dr. Gould stated the purpose for BP and AP 3560 is due to the college growing up physically
with some areas and resources that can be of value to raising money for college events. He
stated that having alcoholic beverages for adult purposes at fundraising events attracts more
people. For this reason, he is making the recommendation of what is allowed under the Ed
Code to have alcoholic beverages on campus.

He highlighted the legal interpretation of both the BP and AP.

A question arose regarding the type of alcohol; specifically, whether the beverage would be
wine or something else.

Dr. Gould stated it could be any alcohol, but usually it would be wine and beer.
Dr. Gould further explained that due to his projection that we would not see a return likely in the
near future or maybe ever to the type of public support received previously from the state, we

needed to look at becoming more self-sufficient, and look at all possible ways of raising revenue
to the campus.

Member Boyle asked which department would be responsible for approving these events.
Dr. Gould stated the President would be the only one approving these requests, and that the

event director would be responsible to see that the policy was followed.

ACTION ITEMS
1. Election of College Council Vice Chair

Chair Waddell stated Member Gilison had been nominated at the last College Council meeting.
There were no further nominations.
Member Gilison was elected as new Vice Chair, unanimously.

2. BP 3560 Alcoholic Beverages
3. AP 3560 Alcoholic Beverages

M/S/C Sergio Lopez/Miriam Trejo to approve BP 3560 and AP 3560.
Motion carried.

ADJOURNMENT
Chair Waddell adjourned the meeting at 3:18 p.m.




DISCUSSION AND
INFORMATION ITEMS

AND
ACTION ITEMS



Attachment A

BP 6301 Fund Balance reporting and Governmental Fund Balance definitions

I. PURPOSE

This Fund Balance Policy establishes the procedures for reporting unrestricted fund balance in the
General Fund financial statements. Certain commitments and assignments of fund balance will help
ensure that there will be adequate financial resources to protect the District against unforeseen
circumstances and events such as revenue shortfalls and unanticipated expenditures.

The policy also authorizes and directs the Vice President for Business Services to prepare financial
reports which accurately categorize fund balance as per Governmental Accounting Standards Board
(GASB) Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions.

IIl. GENERAL POLICY

Fund balance is essentially the difference between the assets and liabilities reported in a
governmental fund. There are five separate components of fund balance, each of which identifies
the extent to which the District is bound to honor constraints on the specific purpose for which
amounts can be spent. The five components are as follows:

Nonspendable fund balance (inherently nonspendable)

Restricted fund balance (externally enforceable limitations on use)
Committed fund balance (self-imposed limitations on use)
Assigned fund balance (limitation resulting from intended use)
Unassigned fund balance (residual net resources)

ORWN

The first two components listed above are not addressed in this policy due to the nature of their
restrictions. An example of nonspendable fund balance is inventory. Restricted fund balance is either
imposed by law or constrained by grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments.
This policy is focused on the financial reporting of unrestricted fund balance, or the last three
components listed above. These three components are further defined as follows:

¢« Committed Fund Balance: The Governing Board, as the District’s highest level of decision-
making authority, may commit fund balance for specific purposes pursuant to constraints
imposed by formal actions taken, such a majority vote or resolution. These committed
amounts cannot be used for any other purpose unless the Governing Board removes or
changes the specific use through the same type of formal action taken to establish the
commitment. Governing Board action to commit fund balance needs to occur within the
fiscal reporting period, no later than June 30t; however, the amount can be determined
subsequent to the release of the financial statements. At the time of adoption of this policy,
the District does not have any reserves that meet this component of fund balance.

Page 1 of 2

Approved by Budget and Fiscal Planning Committee, 5/11/11
Approved by Policies and Procedures Committee, 5/25/11



= Assigned Fund Balance: Amounts that are constrained by the District’s intent to be used for
specific purposes, but are neither restricted nor committed, should be reported as assigned
fund balance. This policy hereby delegates the authority to assign amounts to be used for
specific purposes to the Vice President for Business Services for the purpose of reporting
these amounts in the annual financial statements.

» Unassigned Fund Balance: These are residual positive net resources of the general fund in
excess of what can properly be classified in one of the other four categories. There are some
reserves that do not meet the requirements of the aforementioned components of fund
balance. For financial statement reporting purposes these reserves are included in the
unassigned fund balance.

Hl. CLASSIFICATION

The District considers restricted fund balances to have been spent first when an expenditure is
incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted fund balance is available. Similarly,
when an expenditure is incurred for purposes for which amounts in any of the unrestricted
classifications of fund balance could be used, the District considers committed amounts to be
reduced first, followed by assigned amounts and then unassigned amounts.

This policy is in place to provide a measure of protection for the District against unforeseen
circumstances and to comply with GASB Statement No. 54. No other policy or procedure supersedes
the authority and provisions of this policy.

Page 2 of 2
Approved by Budget and Fiscal Planning Committee, 5/11/11
Approved by Policies and Procedures Committee, 5/25/11



Attachment B

Imperial Community College District
Strategic Technology Plan
2011-2015

Ce
20/ s o

<
< Q[\;“" (é &

c& adR® / < Q’q,

§ e}a L AR o N
\éi :gw'*?&lfts;ib/\\'f(¢ <, ‘%- 2 a o \”223“‘3: ml‘:‘;}m 4;'

”“’”cfyf<f;~<i?;:,“ Lo, (TN emg 2 A el N AR
=4 ®
&

Committee Approved: Version April 14, 2011



Table of Contents

VISION STATEIMIEII...ooiiiiitieei et ettt ettt e eee ettt eees e 3
Strategic INTTAIVES .o e 3
SUPPOET TAOX oottt 5
Five-Year ROBAMAD ..o et e 5
20TT ACtion PLADN coiiiiii ettt 7
Appendix A: Framework for Technology implementation at IVC ..o 9
Appendix B: Technology Support Tndex ..o e e 10
Appendix C: Network Security ASSeSSMEnt ... oo e oo 21

Committee Approved: Version April 14, 2011



Vision Statement

Imperial Community College District is committed to empowering students, faculty, and staff to succeed in
today’s highly connected, collaborative environments. We strive to be an exemplar among California
Community Colleges in our use and support of technology by implementing leading technologies, innovative

strategies, and proven best practices.

Strategic Initiatives

This plan outlines the strategic initiatives related to the technology implementation at IVC. The Framework
for Technology Implementation at IVC (Appendix A) is rooted in the identification, leveraging, and
implementation of “hest practices” in support of student, faculty, and staff success. The framework forms the

basis for the strategic initiatives and drives the plan for technology at IVC.
There are four pillars to the framework, which include:

1. Ubiquitous Broadband and Technology Access

2. 218 Century Learning and Working Environments

3. Integrated Data Management Systems

4. User-centered Support Structures

We shall provide students, faculty, and staff with access to a reliable infrastructure and computing systems

to support anytime, anywhere teaching and learning.

ittecture

Committee Approved: Version April 14, 2011



We shall provide technology-rich learning and working environments that promote the acquisition and use
of 21t Century Skills.

We shall implement and support enterprise data systems that support effective decision-making and

promote synergy, collaboration, and efficiencies throughout the organization.

coriand docneniation

Committee Approved: Version April 14, 2011



Support Index

A Support Index was developed in support of the four strategic initiatives at IVC. The Support Index was
modeled after the International Society for Technology in Education’s ISTE) Technology Support Index,
which is a tool for districts to profile their technology support programs. It has been modified to support the
Framework for Technology Implementation at IVC and serves the following purposes for this strategic plan:

1. Tt identifies a continuum of support capacity and efficiency levels, ranging from “Deficient” to
“Exemplary”.

2. It identifies the “targets” for IVC’s technology implementation. These are represented as Bold and
GREEN Text in the Index. These targets are identified as where we plan to be by 2015.

3. It identifies the current status (as of January 2011) of IVCU's technology implementation. This “self-
study” forms our baseline for accountability. Our current status is shaded EED if not at target,
GREEN if target is currently met.

From this identification of targets and the self evaluation of our current status, the Technology Planning
Committee (TPC) developed an Action Plan for Year 1 of this Strategic Technology Plan. Each year, the TPC
will evaluate progress, modify the Action Plan, and set priorities for the following year. This approach will
permit the college to be responsive to emerging needs, as well as budget constraints and/or opportunities.

The Strategic Initiatives and Support Index outlined in this Plan will drive this process each year.

Five-Year Roadmap

Year 1 of this Strategic Plan is focused on improving the Enterprise Systems and core infrastructure to
support the vision for IVC. In October 2010, a Network Security Assessment (Appendix C) was conducted to
review the mission critical infrastructure and applications in the Data Center. This assessment revealed
several areas that require attention, identified as either critical, moderate, or suggested. Additionally,
comprehensive plans for the virtualization of the Data Center, along with the upgrade and expansion of the

network infrastructure across campus will be developed.

Year 2 of this Strategic Plan will be focused on the implementation and support of comprehensive student
and administrative systems that support the efficient operation of the college. These include student cloud-
based applications, improved information portals, and an Operational Data Store (ODS) and standardized
reporting framework for our BANNER Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) system. Additionally, faculty
and staff development programs will be implemented to promote the effective use of technology across

campus.

Years 3-5 will be focused on adoption and implementation of technology in the classroom and in essential
business practices on campus. As mentioned earlier, each year the TPC will review progress and develop

annual Action Plans to capture priorities and sequence activities outlined in this plan.

Committee Approved: Version April 14, 2011



Year 3 &

Beyond
Adoption and
Year 2 Implementation
Student and
Administrative
Systems
@Year 1
Infrastructure
and Enterprise
Systems

In October 2010, IVC was awarded a 5-year federal Title V grant focused on innovative approaches to
teaching through technology. The Access to Technology Leads to Advancement and Success (ATLAS) program
provides support resources toward the implementation of this strategic plan. This plan will incorporate the
goals and objectives of the ATLAS grant each year.

In addition to the ATLAS grant, IVC is currently undertaking major modernization and facility
improvements, which is supported by the passage of Measure J in November 2010. The modernization and
construction of new facilities will span the next 7-10 years. It is imperative that this Strategic Technology
Plan coordinate with these activities to maximize funding and provide for an integrated implementation of
technology on campus.

Committee Approved: Version April 14, 2011



2011 Action Plan

The following activities are outlined for calendar year 2011.

IMPLEMENTA

1. Clarfty purpose, standing rules, membership, and
meeting schedule of Technology Planning Committee

¥ 2. Evaluate the cumrent stalus of the campus
infrastructure, enterprise systems, and support

 structures : o
3 Develop St‘fategic 5-year Technology Plan (td k
include comprehensive budgeting, maintenance, and
refresh of technology)

"4, Develop comprehensive plan for campus-wide
wireless network ;
5. Fully implement systems management appliance
{KACE) and develop policies and procedures for its use
6. Improve reliability and security of IVTA and CENIC
Connections L
7. implement industfy»standard network security and
monitoring practices

8. Improve connectivity and service to Calexico
campus ;

9. Develop definitions and standards for technology-
rich learning environments

-'10. Strengthen coordination of web-enhanced support

- and other instructiona! tools for faculty ‘ :

" 11. Implement and support the use of
videoconferencing and other collaborative technologies

12. Develop strategy for infegrated student services - |

| felated to technology (Printing, ema, siorage, ekc)
13. Upgrade BANNER (ERP) to Version 8.3

14, Implement “Wait List"

15. Conduct evaluation of Student Module
implementation

16. Design and implement an enhanced development
framework (Data Warehouse)

17. Implement Managed Print Solution

18. Improve/reorganize Support Structures for
BANNER ;

19. Evaluate and develop strategy for the consolidation
of various systems/servers, including leveraging of

cloud technologies

TION
~ Lead Person(s) . Support Index Map

Todd

Todd

Todd

JeffE.

Gordon

JeffE
Jeff E.

Jeff E.

Todd

Omar

Todd

Jeff E./Omar

Jeff C

Jeff C.
Jeff C.
Jefi C.
Gordon
Jeff C.

Jeff E.

Committee Approved: Version April 14, 2011

41

yys

15,16, 17

e

11,19, 110

=12

41

3.2,34,35 36,39

44

413

S
33,37

33
3.7
24,29,211,212
41

33,36

EVALUATION

Evidence

Meefing fnihuteé,
membership roster
and meeting schedule
Reporl‘ AT LN,

Report

Documentation (as-
built)
Documentation (as-
built)

Documentation (as- =
“built)

Documentation (as-
built)

* | Documentation (as-
‘bu‘ill] b=

Report

Documentation (as-

| buit)

Report k

Repot

Documentation (és<

built)
Documentation (as--
built)
Documentation (as-
built)
Documentation (as-

| buil)

Documentation (as-
built)
Report

Report

‘Completion Process

Submitied to Executive
Council - January 2011

Submitted tc Executive
Council - May 2011

Submitted to Executive
Council - June 2011

Submitted to Executive
Council - June 2011
Submitted to Executive
Council - April 2011
Submitted to Executive
Council - March 2011
Submitted to Executive
Councit ~ June 2011
Submitted to Executive
Council - March 2011
Submitted to Executive
Council - June 2011
Submitted to Executive
Council - June 2011
Submitted to Executive
Council - June 2011
Submitied to Executive

- Council - July 2011

Submitted to Executive
Council - March 2011
Submitted to Executive
Council = July 2011
Submitted to Executive
Council - April 2011
Submitted to Executive
Council - August 2011
Submitted to Executive
Council - May 2011
Submitted to Executive

~ Council - June 2011

Submitted to Executive
Council - June 2011



20. Improve integration of instructional systems
{Gradebook LMS, Faculty Websites, e!c}wllh supporl
for Faculty and Student Use

21. Conduct Security and Service Audit

- 22. Conduct redesign of website Improvements for IVC
- public (external)} and private (internal) web presence
23. Upgréde ShoreTel phone system to latest versidn,
complete implementation of appropriate features, and

evaluate implementation
~ 24, Implement fax sérver soiution

25. Implement procedures to maximize Telecomm
discount programs (CTF)

* 26. Develop and implement IT policies and procedures
using industry standards and best practices
27. Organize a Technolbgy Strand for the Campus¥wide
Professional Development Day

. 28. Establish clear guidelines for recovery planning,

 redundancy, increased security, and maintenance of
existing systems

29. Complete impleméntation of DegreeWorks student

self-service functionality, including upgrade of system
30. Complele the instaltation of and training for Position
Control for Banner Inlegration
31, ‘Develop an Enroliment Management strategy
supported by Banner reporting/data
32. Evaluate implementation and develop plan for IP

- Cameras and other network-based systems (e.g.

~ clocks, paging, card access) !
33. Evaluate and implement a campus-wide work-order
management system for IT, Learning Services, and
Maintenance and Facilities

- 34.Upgrade BANNER to CALB Version 84

35. Upgréde Oracle Databases su‘pbdrting‘ BANNER o
Version 11g

JeffE. lOmar ?

Todd ‘

Omar -

Gordon

Todd
1T Mgmt
Todd

Jeff E.

: Jeff C.

Jefi C.

Jeff C.

JeffE.

- Jeff C.

Jeff C.

Committee Approved: Version April 14, 2011

Sirmieuls L pennnlemery Fiag o [

35394344

33

3=

14,33

ESY TN

41

14

413

7Tl

33
33
33

33

e

33,37

33,37

Documentation (as-

“built)
‘Report

Documentation (as- -

bul) -
Documentation (as-
built)

'| Documentation (as-

built)
Report

Policies/Report
Training Offered

Report

Documentation (as
buitt)
Documentation (as-
built)
Documentation (aé»
built)

“Report

Documentation (as-
built)

Documentation (as-
| buity -

Documentation (as-
built)

Submitted to Executive

. Council - June 2011

Submitted to Executive
Council - December 2010

" Submitted to Executive

Council - August 2011
Submitted to Executive
Council - April 2010

‘Submitted to Executive

Council - April 2011
Submitted to Executive
Council - March 2011

~ Submitted o Executive

Council - June 2011
Submitted to Executive
Council - January 2011
Submitied to Executive
Council - June 2011

Submitted to Executive
Council - August 2011
Submitted to Executive
Council - September 2011
Submitted to Executive
Council - December 2011
Submitted to Execulive
Council - May 2011

Submitted to Execufive
Councit - May 2011

- Submitted to Executive

Council - May 2011
Submitted to Executive

Council - July 2011



1102 ‘¥ [ady uotsao y paaoaddy sorpiuuto,)

duiuoisinosg asn Adojoulpal Juapms
pue ‘uonezuoyiny aaeuquy Apandy
‘uoneanuayIny aImas
ABojouypa) sadina( dunndwo) pue
S|[9POA] aSNOYIIEA JuiAojdag pue Adojoulpal paulejuieiy
sanunwwo) ejeq pue gunndwo) 2UDajas Joj sa|duLd -llPM ‘@|qeley
J0 asn Ajowolg ARANDY pnoj) padeianal udALIp-Jje1s /Al noey

sndwe) 1noydnouy;
suondp SWRAISAS dANBSIUIWPY sapA) a|qeipald SSaIDY SSajRAM
Buiuiea asianig pue uonewoju) uo Juawade|day pue
1uapms paaig Jo 1sag [emauay Adojoutpal SwooJsse|)

unouudhwo_oc._u-._. uc-
Eﬂv-o._m 53_%_3_:
Vi I

saJpoeld 1sag juawajdw] pue ‘@3esanat ‘Ajjuapi

||l..lhﬂl..ll|.|l-rl-.’
e $5320N% _

s

il

L .mcozﬁ_:mubo_u:m tmum\>:3u£ uapnig T

=

[ TR RURIVRIER o SSOURININ e s R sl 1 3 i PR

DAl 1e uoijeyuawajdwi ASojouydral 10§ yJomawel

Vv Nipuaddy



1107 11 udy uorsaop poscaddy sopjiwwo;)

‘poddns jo Abajens Arewud
®B SB pasn s| pue siayndwoa ||e 10}
a|qejieAe s| Juawabeuew ajoway

‘ApAIsuaxe
pasn j,ust jng sisindwioo ||
10} ejqejieae s juswebeuew sjowey

"Ajuo s1en8s 10}
o|qejieAe | juswabeuew sjowey

‘8|qe|leAe
sl juswabeuew syowal oN

juowsbeuepy
Isndwo) ejoway
Sl

‘poddns [eajuyoe)
10j pasn aq ued 3t Jey} 0s }iom Ajiep
oju| pejeibeyul s| pue uoneziuebio

‘Woddns |eaiuyoe) o) pasn Appess | ust

"seafo|dws
10 YJom Ajiep au ol |[e e pejeiBejul

‘Hoddns |eoiuyos) Buipirold

uonesIUNWWo?
21u01393|3 JlWe)sAg

3} U] aUoAIaAa 0) a|qe|ieAR Inq uonezuebio ayy ul auokieas ) 1.Us Ing Jeys Auew o) s|qe|iese 10} 8Sn o SEY pUE pajiw] pue pajeiBajuj

S| UONEIIUNWWOD 21U0JIR|T |  SIGEjiBAR S| UOHEOINWLLIOD DIL0I08|T S UOESIUNWILICD 9IU0JJ09|T S| UOI}BOIUNWILIOD OIUOI08|T Al
*pajoe1l09 Ajjesnewo)ne aje

doyysap ay) o) saBueys ‘aremyjos {sa|lyo1d)

UOWWIOD 0) SS8IIk PUB SIASN |[@ Jo) pejoslioo Ajjeaewoine ‘paholdap sijuswdinbs sy S|00] uolnezipiepus)s

doyysep uowwos e epinoisd o) pasn | | uale ayew siesn sabueys Inq ‘soeid aouo paloubl Apsow aie jng ‘soe|d pasn ale sonoeid o | asemyog pue dopyseq

ale |00} uopjezipiepue}s dojyse( ul aJe sj00) uolezipiepuejs dopysaq | Ui ale sjoo) uonezipiepuels dopseq | Sj00) UonezipiepuEs dojysep o) £l

"asn |00} ‘Yipmpueq

pue |013u0d }iom)au pajiwijun oy ‘YIpIMpuEq Ul pajiu| a1 ul pajwy s pue sieindwoo yjpmpueg pue

Bummoyje suopeso [je 0 a|qe|ieAr | | oMU 8y Jo SjusiBas Ing suoneso)| (e 10edw },Us80p NG ‘SUONEDO] "uoneoo| Alsas Ul o|qe|ieAe ) us! | a1njonnSeIU| SHOMION

$58998 YIGMJaU pueqpeolq }snqoy [E 0} 8|qeIeAR SI SSB00B YIOMSN [[e 0} 8|qB[IeAR S| $$8008 YJOMON pue pojill| SI $S8008 YIOMSN Tl

JULISISUD

‘perepdn
Aljeanewo)ne pue ‘pasn ejqe|ieAr
S| 8JBM)OS SIIIA POsSk(-1oAIag

J,uaie sejepdn pue psulep Aj9so0]|
ale asn s) 10} siejeweled sy Jng
'POSN S| SJEMJ0S SNJIA POSE]-I9AISS

‘8jep Jo
1IN0 USYO 810j818Y) PUB pased-lusij
SI}11Nq ‘PosSN $I 8JBMYOS SNIIA

"posn S| SIEM}JOS SNUIA ON

uoIja9joid SNIIA
L'l

fouerpyyg

pue b_oc%o r&a‘am Eu_aEem_;

- Kousrony3

; E_a b_ow%o to%:w Aiojoesnesg

‘Kouepoipg
E_w b_u&ao to&:w pajwi

Kouepaiy3
pue b_ow%o yoddng jueioyeq

SSOO0Y ABOIOUYIV ], PUR puBgpRoLg snonabiany Jo]

Ol A

5 e 18

yaotidn

¢ xipuoddy




1107 #1 [ady uotsaop poacaddy sorprwwo))

*8]00) asay) Buisn
paiojuow Ajjeonewa)sAs si yomeu
8| "asueuajuiew aajejuanald

lo} 8931w eoueutiopad ysiqese ‘goueUSjUIRW DANBIUSABId sjoo}

pue swajqoud asoubelp yjoq pajiwy| pue sisouBeip we|qoid “Ajuo sisoubelp wasjgosd ‘pesn ale Buipiug syomyeN

0} pasn ale s|joo) Buiyius sromjaN 10} pasn a1e 8100} BUIYIUS YIOMION 10} pasn a1k sj00) Buiylus yJomay sjooj Buiyius y1omjeu oy oLl
*saanseaw aAjjuaaald -

10} pue ‘sassasoid auljweans ‘pasnun ‘alempley s|00] Juswabeuey

0} ‘sanss| Jo sisoubeip 10} ‘uousasid pue sisoubelp loj Asow ase Inq paseyoind uesq Buiseyoind usym paispisuod aly19eds-1opuap

Ajaaisus)xe pasn aue sjooj Jopusp | Aem pajiwi e ul pesn ale sjoo} Jopusp | @Aey pue sjaesese sie |00 JOpUaA 10 paj|elsul ), usse $j00) Jopusp 6l

‘|apow jual)o-uiy) e ybnoiys "81eMY0S AlAjonpold 'suofjealdde
paJaAljop sI jJe1s 10} a1em}os BWOS pue SWa)sAs sAlELSIUIWLPR oyoads 10} S18SN JO JOGUINU [[ELS Bunndwoy juena-upyy

fyianonpoud pue aajjelysjuwpe [y 4O SI9SN }SOW 10} Posn S1Jualio Uly | § & O} pajiuy Siing pesn sijuaip wy | | pasn,usi Bunndwos jusio-uy | 81
"s19)ndwod ‘Jeinduwiod (enpiaipul
$.JoU]SIP 94} UO BSh BIBMYOS JO ay) uo pejpuey ale suonejejsul *ado0s ul paywy| si KBojouyoa )
Buusjaw soj pue ‘sejepdn [eaiuyos) aJemyjos Jolew ng ‘sajepdn | osn sy pue ‘sejepdn pue uonejielsul ysng uonesyddy
‘uonnqLIsIp a1em3jos ||e 10§ pasn SIBMYOS auios pue Buusjew Joj | 10j pesni,usi ing Buusiew Joj pasn (00} JoLSIp B SB pasn ) usl pue Bulis)apy
s ABojouyae) ysnd pue Buuajely | pesn si ABojouyos) ysnd pue Buuerep s ABojouyosy ysng4 pue Buus)apy ABojouyos) usng pue Buisieiy L
‘ABeress Bugooyseignon
‘anlsusyaidwon si ssasoid e se pasn | buibew ‘pabewn
BuiBewy ey yBnouyy pajersul S| SIBMJJOS JiSeq pue S0 Jiseq "10pusA 8y} Aq papiroid aiemyjos
alemyjog “ABajens Bunooyssiqnon 8 A ‘suyoew ay) uo asemyos oyl | Buibew) sy) yim seoinies Aisnoos)
B SB pue ‘seulyoerw mau jo A1aaljep J0 ||B 83U} 0} pasn ) us! Jng suiyoeLy Buipinoid Ajuo — ssuss aanwid alemyos Buibew)
1o} vomz S| asemyos Buibew| ms ho Kisayep 10} uoa: 21 ebewn uy | jsow sy ul umm: sl 1emyy0s Buibeu 'Pasn J,us| s1emyos Buibew 9l

Koueoy3
pue Apoeden to& ng ba_aEem

. Koueayg

v__a 3_3%0 to&:m Eo«oamﬁm;

foueronyg

* pue Ayoeden romnaw peywry

Koualoyyg

; v:a b_o.&au to&:m jueidleq




1107 ¥1 pady uotsao g pesoaddy sopiuuo;)

'SO "SO Jusda) | Loddns pajiuy 8nsoal 10 pajeibi ousip sy (S0) wayshs
1ey; o} pajesBiw sieindwoo e yim Jsow ay) o) pajesbjw Juswdinba ieyye ase siejndwos 50 sepo ey | Aq peioddns, sle | pue ‘pesn BupesadQ piepue)g
‘OPIM-JOLIISIP POSN §1 UOISIOA SO BUQ | IsOW Yjm ‘pash ale SUOISIOA SO oM pue ‘pasn ase SuISIeA SO 88y | .. SUOISIOA SO 8J0W 10 IN04 97
‘suonestjdde [euoponnsul
“Jojpue sueiboid oyy1oads 1oy ‘wioyiun Ajjesoush {ung
‘Ko sjoslold uuojyeld puosss e pue ‘asn |eiguab ale pue ab.e| Je syusuiedep Jolisip 8y} Ul sfenpiAipul 0} Y| | ‘smopulipy ‘siddy “6-e)
[e10ads Joj suodeoxs Mo} Yim 101IsIp Joj wiopeld yueujwopaid auo ypm | Aq spew sie seoloyo Jnqg ‘swuogerd | s1 soioyo wioped pue ‘suioe|d uuoie|d
8y} Jo} pajos|es si wojieid sugy m_Eora_m om) spoddns joisip eyj | aJowl Jo oM spoddns Jouisip sy | esow Jo om) spoddns Jousip ey | (24
: : oul
"SUOELEA M3) U)IM ‘OM) "sjepow G-¢ 03 pajiwl| aJe $3310yd | 1ey) uiym usAIb ale s301040 Auew “uooses uonoa|ag |apoy
10 8u0 0} pejiw s Uojosjes [opojy | pue ‘pajosjes uaaq sey sull jspow y | Ing ‘pejosies Usaq ey aul |ppowl y | [BPOW UO SUOIENWI| OU BJE 818y | XA
"991A19S [BIIUYDD) aoles Jejnbal ul shejep ewos
1e|nBai uj suondnisip Jo skejap Bugeam yejs (goiuyos) senbal ey jo | uswkoidep Buunp soinss sejnbel
ou Buipiroid suonounyjuswiodep | Anigisuodsas ey si dnjes jng Juswdinba | U uoonpe [enuelsns e Bulinbes Juswdinbe meu juswfo|dag
lle 1o} pazijnn si {pajoeijuod Jo BuiBBe; pue BuiBewn o) pezyn Juswdinbs meu Jo Juswho|dep | jo juswioldsp sy Joj s|qisuodsal yuawdinbg may
Jo |ewajul) djey jeuonippy | si (pajoenuos Jo jewss)ul) diey euolippy sebeuew feis [eoluyos) sy | ale jjejs (e00| pue sndweo sy | A

"awn

‘aw Jo "plepue)s ayj apisjno L) Je uonos|as Jsaq ay) Buipirold {919 ‘g ‘o|ddy
pouad pspusixs Ue JeAo pueiq eyt | sijeys Juawdinba swos jo Buiseysind §1 JopusA Jeym uodn Buipusdep "Po|j0AU0D YIS S| pue ‘leq ‘beduion “Be)
ulynm epew sle seseyoind | pue | 1oj Bummojje paslojua Afouls ),usi Ing 1eak 0} Jesk woyy sebueyo | “Auo soud Ag suop si Buiseyoind uof)osjas pueig
‘polyvads useq sey puelq 1ousip yf 'pa)as[es usaq sey pueiq JoISIp Y Ing ‘pe}os;es S| puelq Jolisip ‘paiyoads aJe spueiq oN F 4
'sleah g
"8j0f0 Juswisor|de. "3]9A9 Juawaoe|dal Jeak-g—p uey) 1oyea1b 81040 Juswaoe|de) pauyep | juswdinbg jo Buijoho
Jeak-¢ e uo paoe|d s juswdinb3 e uo paoseyd sy juswdinby & uo paoe(d | juswdinb uaaq sey apha Jusweoridal oy 12
Koueioiy3 , = Kouerdiy3 ; ; Kouepoiy3 Kouejoyy3
pue Aj1oedes) yoddng Kiojoeisneg pue Apoedeq poddng vo:E_._ pue Ayoede) poddng juaidyeq

-pue Apoede) poddng Aiejduiexy

STUOUOL AU} BUNI0 4y pur SBuinavoy Sanjuay 17 a0 woddng 1

&l R ey (%2

o [ ooty




1LOZ ¢ 1 pady voisdoy ipoacaddy sonruiwo,)

"sa1ousIdlyje pue sbuiaes 'SI0J0RNUCO Bsn
azi[eal 1o/pue swajqoid xa|dwod 0) seoug)swnol0 pue ssoejd sibsjens
aAjos 0) ABejens poddns |10 1SOW a8y} sulLLIB)ap O] pejenjeAs Usaq “ABajens poddns jjeisno sy
ay} jo ped eAld8)Je ue se pasn Jou sey nq 'ABejens poddns jrieno j0 1ed e se jou Inq ‘seiousbiows poddng pejorijuo)
KjjeaiBajens sy poddns pajoenuog | ey jo ped se pasn st poddns pajoenuon 1o} pasn si poddns pajoeinuo) ‘posn j,us oddns psjoeljuon e

“sylom

1S ) }1 uana abe Juawaoejdas '$)e81q JI lun 1011sIp Aq pesn 8q “Auoud ‘MOjje $831n0sa) sk pajoddns
aly) sayoeal )l uaym adialas | ueo Ing jpuuosied jousip Ag pajoddns mo| e sejnq puuosiedjomsip | i pue ajgesn jebuoj ou si i pun sonoeid snyding
jo 1no uayey s Juewdinbs sniding 196u0j ou sl Juswdinba sniding | Aq pepioddns sijuswdinbe sniding | snidins o) pappe  ust jusiudinbs 0z
{019 ‘08pIA

"pS}iL| 818 S{epoW pue spuelg

"Sway) pejes

'98N JBWNSUOD
10} pojel ale pue Afjusnbayy sbueyo

'si0josfo1d ‘seioled
1e16ip ‘siouuros

"asn osidis]ue Joj pejes Atewnd -lawnsuod Auew yjm suondo Auew splepugys jesaydusd sy | jusie ‘siojund “6-9)
8le jeL) pellijuspl sjopow ooads | sulejuod jsi| sl Jng ‘jopow pue pueiq puBlq 8y} UIYHM S[OpPOW N puelq spiepug)g jeiayduad
UM 'pazipiepuels ale sjessyduad |y Kq pazipiepuess ale sjeisyduag Aq pazipiepuels ole sjesoydiied | 198 eue spiepues |eiayduad oy 62
"paseyaind aq uea juawdinba
piepue)s mau os pabeinosus ale
suoljeuop yse) "plo s1eak Z uey)
ss3) s| Juawdinb3 -syuswalinbal ‘plo siesh ¢
wa)sAs pue ‘esuewiopad ‘[apow | uey) ssg| sijuewdinb3 “pueiq psysebbns ‘abe Jo pueiq o) piebes ou yym ‘spiepug)s Juswidinbs j10181p :
‘pueiq syioads sjeaw 3 | Ajuo | pue sjuswainbel souewnoped wnwiuw | Suswasnbas soueunoped wnwm | sisew )i Joylaum o} piebsi ou ym juawdinb3 pajeuoq
Inq paydasoe s| Juswdinba pejeuoq Ui pajdaooe sl Juswidinbs pajeuog | yim pajdacoe sf juawdinba pajeuoq peideooe si juswidinba psjeuo(] B o4
pepiacid
‘slgindwod uo pepiuied aje ‘papiroid s| poddns ou Jng s poddns awos pue pepiued plepuw}g
Jsl] 8y} uo suonealdde asoy) Ajuo pue | pawmojje aJe SUOKe||BISUI PIRPUBSUON 8Je SuoNefjejsu| pIepuBRSUON ‘paysiigeise |  asemyjog uopeoddy
PoYSI|(e}Se 1 SPIBPUE)S BIBMIJ0S vo;m__nsmm 8Je spiepue;s aiemyjog | PaysIqeIse ale %E_ucsm 21eMjjos | usaq oAy SpIEPUE]S BIEMYOS ON 1T
; ; ~ Koueroyyg AR Kouspyz | © 7 fouepmyg | ~ fouspy3
" pue b_o!_uo ton%m bq_asem_ pue b_ow%o .._o&:m Eso&mawm -~ pue 3_2&8 ta&:w vs_E.._ pue Ayseden poddng jueioleq

RRSSEVASEECIO R AU

TR s(ﬁ puR Suruaeoy

;C:L.v,:,

RINRIEIARIN

LAWY L1 d0g aodd

e

S

et
o
e
e
.o
L
o
3
e
omer
ot
s
towa




1102 V1 (rdy uoisao p poacaddy vonruwo:)

BAjInMUI | uele
'sjoo Auanonpoid Jeyjo yym Ajaoiu pue stuejsAs JaLjo Lm jjem
ajeiBajul pue ‘aanInjul ‘ajqel|el jeubajul j uop Ing ‘ajgeied ase | oML IO B|qeIe! ) Usie Ing ‘sor|d "goe|d stwa)shg eslidisjug
‘ooe|d Ul ate swaysAs asudiejug pue soeyd ul sse swe)sks esudieju u Ajensed aie sweysAs ssudisiug Ul usle swejsAs asudispul ¢
‘suonesijdde paseq (-0le ‘Jusjuoo ‘saueiq (dsy)

yoteesal pue ‘yuejuod ‘Ajianonpoid
Buipnjoul ‘suopesidde ajeidoidde
10§ pasn ale sadAIas 4Sy

yoseasal ‘Kiaonpoid “6'a) alemyjos
jo AsoBiejeo suo o) pajiwu| s1ing
Pasn aJe SaIAIes 4SY JO Jaquinu iy

1onpoud e Jo aimeu jessydued ay)
0} anp poddns joedwi § usaop ) Ing
'Pasn 818 SavIAIBS JSY OM) J0 BuQ

"PoZI|In 8JE $9IAIBS 4SY ON

$19pInO.g 82IAI8S
uones||ddy jo asp
[4Y

‘uoIjed0|

auo jo apisyno Juswabruew

Jonas [ewqujw Bugnbes pazijeljuas
818 $9IIAI0S PUB SIAAISS ||y

‘Areuso papiroid
8Je Sa0jAI8S |SOWW PUB SUOHED| M8}
e ojul _“.9848..8 aJje siones Auepy

“Ajjenuso

papirosd ([g1S] weisAs uonewiopul
Juspnis ‘lew-o “6-9) s80IAI8S SIS
Uim JoAISS BUO AUO Sey 8jis yoeq

“Ajeoo] sor|d seye)

Juswebeuew Janles pue dnyoeg
‘slomos o(dinw ‘sesE0 BWOS Ul
‘PuB JSAISS UMO S)I SeY 8IS AloA]

S90IAIBS pazi[RIjud)
pue suLe{ loA19S
L'

Kouepdiyg - Koueoiy3 Koueronyg Koueionyg
pue Ajoedes poddng bu.nEexm_,. pue a_o.auo to&:m Eo«o&waam pue Ayoede poddng peywiy | pue Ayoedes poddng jueidyeq
SUHIOISAY JHowone UR wieq]yp 1 a0y proddng - 4y
‘(uawdinba |je (Ko
‘seak ¢) uedsey| uswdinbe ay) 1oA09 sieindwod ‘1esA ¢) sjessydied
{sieak | 3,uop inq sjeseyduad pue sse3ndwos apnjoul J,useop pue juswdinbe (1e8h |) Queuem
810W Jo G} Juswdinbe sy jo ay| uo AjueLiem pIepuE}s sy} puajxe o) 8U) JO 8J1| U} JOADD J,UOP INg piepue)s sy puokeq pansind sanuellepy
8y} JoA02 0) paseyoind oJe SoljuBLIBil paseyaind aie safjueLiem papue)xg umwmcosa ale SoljURLIEM POpUSIXT aJe safjueliem [euonippe o rAN4
Koueo1p3 -Kouaoyy3 - fousayg Koueioyyq
u__a Qow%o to&:m aouoewawm E_w 3_%%0 to&:w vS_E_.— E_a b_oa%u to& ng jueldiaq

pue b_o.awo yoddng Aieydusex3.

ST E::.:,‘,w WS BUIMIO AL PUT BUILARO] AI1UO

w10 01 naoddrn

o
nims
IS
s
o
-
e
=
o
o
o,




107 1 [dy oo

posoaddy veyunuo:y

"sjuapnjs pue 1
Ky|noey 10y papoddns [jam si pue ‘LI Aq papoddns s1 | Aq pspoddns Jou swejshs ssidisjus "uogongsul swaysAg
sweysAs sndwes yym pajesbojul | pue ‘swejsks sndweo ywm pejeibejul sndweo yym pajesBsjul jou sle Hoddns 0} 18ixe swe)sAg | juewaBeuey bujusear]
Aling st S esiudisjus uy | Jeymawos si ‘papiroid si Sy ofbuis v pue ‘o|qe|ieA. ale S ST oldnnp JustueBeuepy Bulutes oN 6¢
‘pajoajoud Ajejerdoldde ‘snduwes
s| pue ‘psjipne Ajjeaipouiad $50.08 JUB)SISUOU| 8Je saonoeld
s| ‘eoeld u) s| uopewlojul ‘pomalnal pue payipne Ajieinbe) $S8UISNQ puB 'UoReULIojUI Kjpinogeg
[esjuapljuod Bupoasyoid Joj potjjew ‘pajusWNoop Jou aue seopoeld sssuisnq Ing [efueplUoD ssalppe 0} | puB 93UBWIAAOY) BlR(
pejuawnoop-||am Jusys|suod y -[lom aJe sainpaoo.d pue sapljod | ‘isixe seinpaooid pue seloljod owog | sixe sainpeooid pue ssioljod oN 8¢
‘Buiyew
uols|aap usalp-ejep poddns
0} papiaold aie sjoo) Bugiodas "osn sndwes ;
paoueape pue ‘ase|d uj s ejep Hoddns 0} pesn a.e $/00) Buipode. “1eyjebo) pejeiBejul jou "SJSIX9 EJBp feuopn]ysul Buisnoyalep ejeq
sndweo Joj Aioyisodas jenusd y | sidiinw ing ‘spsixe Aiojisodeas [eued y 8Je pue jsixe seucyisodal ejdginyy Joj Aioyisodel |eijusd ON L'
“snduies uo pajdope Ajapm si yarym
‘f1eAljap pno| jo ssausjelidoidde ‘8|qe|leA. ale $80IN0S8) Sk pe)eIbiw ‘payseljal
loj uopeaydde yore ajenjeas | ole SWejSAS JUSWUONAUS PhOjo B Ul Jo paoejdes Buleq usym saonies Bugndwon pnojy
0} sisixe ssa0.d paimonns y | Alligelns Jo} pameires ole swejss [y | pnop o) pajeiBi ese swajsis swos "POZIN 218 SBIIAISS PNOJO ON 9g
‘pajosyoud Ajejenrdosdde ‘sndweo sso10e JusjSISUooUl Bujuoisinold
s| pue ‘pajipne Afjeaipousad aJe seaqoeld ssauisng pue pue ‘uonezuoyny
sl ‘aoe|d ul s| S321n0S81 0) SSPIIR pamaira) pue pajipne Apenbal ‘Bunoisiaoid pue ‘uogezuoyne ‘uohjeaguayny
Bunainsel pue Buipiroid 10) poyrow "psjusIndop Jou ase saonoesd SSaUISNG NG ‘uoljeanueyINe ssaippe o} aIn2ag
pajuawWn30op-|[am Ju8)sISuod “|[e# o1e sainpaooid pue sepljod | ‘jsixe sainpecosd pue seiod swos | jsixe seinpeoosd pue seiolod o 6
'SpIo9al
*swe)sAs [eanuo e Bumoddns "SWaysAs [eonio Auapy 1oy 221N0S BALELOYNE ‘Sjuspn}s pue
$)six9 Juawebeuew Ayuapl Jsow Bunioddns jsixe Juswebeuew | ou I aley) NG ‘Sisixe Juswabeusw ‘He)s “Ainoey Jo sennuapl obeuew | juswaBeuely Aguap)
10§ 821n0s o>a$=o£=u pajelepa) Ajljuspl 1o} $80IN0S sANBIIOYINY Anuapi jo weysis aiseq y 0} J81X0 $955920.1d 0lWB)SAS ON e
Koueiong - Koualoyg . Kouepug " Kouepoyg
_ pue Ayoede) poddng Kiejdwiexg. E_w b_ow%o t&%m Eo«o&maam v__a b_uw%o to& ng vﬁ_EJ E_a b_ow%u to&__m Eo_o yeq

SWDIHAG JUSIZ U Y wie(] pareaBoig dop woddng

Y




1107 11 pady uosas A poacaddy’ ovpiuawo)

"asUdjap Jo aul| }s1l ay)
se ysa( djoy 8y} seariqua ainyna

“gsUsjep Jo aul| 181 oY)

Jo1181p 9y} pue ‘Yejs paules) § se A|eoiws}sAs pasn 10U s131INq ‘payels ‘payels Apjenbepe ‘papiro.d ysagdieH

Yam ade|d ul si yse dieH J1oLsIp pue soe|d Ul 8| ¥se( djeH JousIp v \usi Inq papiaoxd si yse dioH v 81 {oddns ysoq digH ON vy
‘uopn|osa.

10} yjed Jeso e pue ‘Uoneeose | "s|aAa] uaam)aq JaA0sS0ID Juedlyubls pez2wbooal “Jesjoun SaNss| [ealuyos] 10}

10 sdajs si0W 10 B81Y) Y ‘eor|d
ul 81 $$8901d UONR[BOSS paUlep-|eM

pue uone|eoase Jo sdajs omy
ym aoe|d uj s ssasold uope[eISD UY

sl ssa001d uole|RISa OU Jnq “aoe|d
ui s1 uoynjosa Joj yed Jeap v

s uonjosal Joj yyed sy} pue
‘soe(d U1 81 ss8001d UOIRIROSS ON

$S3001¢ UON)R[RIST
14

JUBLLILOHAUS 8} JO SUOISUSWIP
a|dijjnw apnjous se|nuLio 4

‘Buiels sap
),uop pue apinb e se pasn Ajuo

‘suonjesado jo ped jewiou e se | 1€ NG JUSWUONAUS B} JO SUOISUSLIP Buiye)s aaup o) pasn Bulyeig ABojouyss |
Buyyjels ealp pue padojsasp usaq a|dnnw Bunapisucd ‘pedojarsp J.uaie pue edoas ul pajiwi| &8 ng ‘pesepisund USALIp-B|NULIO §
aAel sejnuLioj aaisusyaldwon Us3q 8ARY SE(NWIO) SAISUBYSIdWo,) | pasapisuco ale Bulyes Joj sejnuuo4 10 pasn },uaie senuwo) buiyels Ty
"uoissiw
U)sip ay) Buipoddns Ajjeajd jun
81} Y3M SaINJon1)s UofjedIUNWWOD “S)un usemiag 'SISIXe LONRIGE|j0d JUB)SIXS-UOU 10 )|NOILIP
pue puewwod jo uleys uoleoIUNWWIOD SI 818Y) pue peziuebio [EuOROUNj-88010) uonezivebio | S| Uo[eIOgR||00 [BUONOUN)-SSOI)
|ea1Boj e Joy Guipiaoid ‘uoneziuebio AjpAISBUO0 1 Iun Yyoes Ing ‘Ajjusiayip U} jo sjuod aydninw woy | 1eoiboj Ajleuonouny 1 ust Buplods) aimonng
a) u yun awes ayy ybnoayy podas | podes suonouny ABojouyos) [euononnsul S8LW00 uonoallp pue ‘Aiuapt 0} | pue ‘uoneziuebio sy um sjulod |euoneziuebip
suofjouny ABojouyds) ayy Jo ||y pue suonouny poddns |ealuyos) sy | noup ae saunjonss Buiiodes ay | o(diynw wouj seWod uoRoBIIG 'y
Koueloiy3 R Koueioiy3 Kauery3 Kouerai3
pue b_ou%o Hoddng bu_anxm _Eu b_oa%o poddng Eoﬁsmaam E_a 3_2&8 yoddng peywiy | pue Ajoede) poddng jueioleq

[BUOISSOJOL ] pUR " Suitied ] Suijeiq) soanonng voddng potroiuo y-ao




L10Z F1 [ady uotsio y

posoaddy oonmuwo )

‘pabeinoaua £|buoys ale “uoljeolyie0 “uoljealyes "uoljealieo ensind o) gol
SUOREIILAI mau pue ("932 ‘ISIN splemo) sweiboid peyioddns-jousip spiemo] pepiroid si poddns ou | ay) woly Aeme swiy Inoge pesie) }I®1S [eo1uysa ]
‘00819 ‘+y “69) seaie ajedordde | ul panjorul s sioyo ‘sesie sjeudoidde | ing ‘peiiuies awooeq o) pelieinoous .e suJ50U00 pue uoneziuebio 0 uonedy)
ul paliaed si jjels |ealuyds) 3soy ul paiisg si jjels [eoluyos) swog S1 4es jeajuyoe) ejeudosddy | oy Ut Auond e ,us| uoheoyiiay (14

‘suonesado jo yed jeuuou Ajuo yeys |eaiuyos)

e s| uononpoid uoyejUAWINIOP ‘podojonsp ale M8} 0] pajiLLl| S1 UONEUBLLINOOP 'SUONIOS UMO JIaY)
uapum-||apn “sdnoif Jasn jsow s2.npacoid se psjepdn Ajjeonewsisis JSOW "pasn Jo paseys | JUSAUI O} EIS [BOIUYOS) pUB Si9sn SaINpaadid
Aq pasn s| pue syse} |ed1UYo9) 1,US! pUB USHLIM [[OM 10U S JNG SYSE) Ajapim J,usi |ng SYSE) |BOILUYDS) Buuinbas — syse) [eaiuyos) 10} pajusuwinaoq
Jsow 10§ s)sixe uonejuswnoo | [eoluyds) AuBw 1o} S}SIXe UOKBIUSWINDO(] 10} S}SIX8 UONEJUBWNOOP aWoS |  SISIXe UOHEJUSINGOP OU IO 8l 1’34

"Ajosojp $9888001d JUBIBYIP

‘pasn AJuels|suod ale Jeyj alemyos | U} MOj|0} J,UOP SISSN ‘JIOABMOY ‘BAIB08) BNIB0a ||IM a1emyos jo Liobajes splepuejs
J0 10S Yoea 10) sassesold poddns | im asemyos jo Aobeieo usaib eyioddns | ueab e poddns jo puiy sy Jo} apew pue sjoa0jold
pajepjualtayjip Jeajd ym ‘papiaold | jo puly sy} 1o} 8pew SI UoKENUSISYIP pUe SI UonenualayIp ou Ing ‘pepirid ‘819N 10} pepiroid poddng aiemyjog
s1 esemyos papoddns joisi v |  popiroid si siemyos pepioddns jo3s) v S| aJemyjos papoddns jo Jsi v 1 asemyos papoddns Jo jsij oN v

"24n}no 8y Jo Jed snisensd
B I 81U "$80IN0Sal SAIsUsyaIdwoo

"aAIseAlad

djaH |estuyse]

pue as1enp woyy diey 10} soinosal | Ajjeuoneziuebio jou s| as) “a|qejieA. pajill| 818 S8aIN0sal "8IN}|NS JOLIISIP pUB $80IN0S8) Joj aseqabpapmouy
181} J1ay) se seseq obpsjmouy $921n0S81 peoly [e19Aas ale alay) | 8y} pue ealseAlad | us JoIABYSq Bu) jo Alngeneae o} enp yioq disy auljuQ Jo aspy
auljuo wolj djay syoss Lels 1Sop pue djay aujuo syeas yeis Auep Inq ‘djay euijuo S}80S IS SW0S aulluo woyy djey ou yess syeig Yy
‘wa)sAs siy) ybnosyy pajenjens
pue pa)yoeJ) aJe Sanss [BIIUYD3) AjpAnosye suop j us "spusJ} Buiysijqelss pue senssi
IV "waysAs Bugayan sjgnosn spuajj e|qissod pue ‘sawn asuodsal Jo Bupyoel jesionun 1oy Buimoyje
auos}a8[e ue ybnosy) sasnosal ‘sanssi jo siskjeuy ‘senssi jeaiuyes) | jou ‘uvonejuswsldwi sy ul sjdwis si wa)sAg
ajeudoidde o} pejeBajep pue 0} Buipuodsas Joj Ajpaisusixe pasn sl | 1o/pue o1uonosje ) Usi Ing ‘soed ul Buneyar] sajqnoi}
Pap102a. aJe sanss| |e3luye) ||y | pue soejd ui si wajshs Bunexoy ajgnoy v | s wejsAs Bupeyon aignos eidwis v | “sisixe welsAs Bunexon s|qnoy oN SP
Koueroiiy ATt Kousioy3 -Kaueroly3 : Kouepdy3
pue Ayioede) poddng Aieidwexg ‘pue Ayorde poddng bsuemzam 3 - pue Aj1oedes poddng pajiwr | pue Ayoedes poddng jusiolyeq

[PHOISSO 0L pUR Suruieg |

51 IRV

THURIG) Somonng oddng posojue yau




[10Z 171 Pady uotsao g

poacaddy vopmwo))

‘8)9S ||I4S jO ‘seakojdwe
Kys1ealp e Juaseids) pue ‘Ajgjows "sBunisyo Jisyy Ul pejiwi| 8Je Ing 10 uonendod pajiw| & 0} ejqejiese sanlunpoddo
pue a)isuo yjoq yejs 1o} papiaoid ‘Ap10Wa] pue 8)ISUO YElS o} S|ge|IeAR 2@ pue adoos Ui pajiwl| ase Ing 1SIX8 Juop Bujuiesy aunug
ale sayjiunpoddo Bujuiesy sulug a.e sepiunpoddo Buiuien suljug ‘Isixa segiunpoddo Buiuiey suup sepunyoddo Buuiey sujug LY
*saiunpoddo
Bujusea| as19Alp pue ‘AJjigejunoase ‘8sipedxs pjing o) uoneAow Ryoedes
‘aAljuasu] seduejeq pue uojeziuebiio umo sienpiapul uodn spusdep [euoyjeziuebio
alnjeu uj aalssaiboid s| weiboid ay) ebiueyo o) pasinbel ydep ay) Kanijep syl uoneziuebio sy | “Apusnbaiul [le1ano ~ sweiboig
ayf "yes Ty syoedwi jey) | J8j0 | useop pue yeis jje joedw ) useop u uoisuawip aibuis e sasn papiroid 1 Buluies; pue juswdojens(
aoe|d u s wesboid Juewdojenap | 1 1B} Ul aunjeU Ul BAISUSY@IdWOD | st || pue ‘Aigjunjoa ‘pajilui si jng soejd ‘a0e)d u) welboid Juswdojersp | YeIS eAlsuayaidwor
Je1s aaisuayaadwods y | soejd ul st wesboid juswdopasp yejs v w si weiboid juswdojenap yeis y JE)S fewlo) ou sl aley | IR
JUs[e} 0} S88saUISNg *s)ijauaq uonesuadwod-uou

oleAud yum Buijedwioo ‘seseo aannedwoa Buuayo eale ‘Bale

BWOS U pue ‘eale sy Ul suoneziuelio pue ‘eale ayj u] suopeziuebio ay) ul suoneziuefio juseanba | sy ui suoneziueBio Jusjeanbe jo
JusjeAInbs Jo apmusoied Yipg sy juejeainba jo ejnpueslad yips jo anuaosad YiG o) Yips ey u | 906 WoRog 8y) Ul uoljesuedwos uopnesuadwon
Ul uoesuaduwion Bunisyo ‘sanedwos | - 03 yigz ey ui uopesuadwod Bupeyo | uonesuedwos Buuayo ‘eannedwos Buliayo ‘eanneduios aannadwon
Aen ale suopisod [eoluyos | | ‘eAnnadwiod ele suomsod [ealuysa) | Asiesepow sse suogisod (eoluype | Ajood a1k suonisod |eoluyos | t{%

4By si uonoeysnes sakojdwa "poob s| uoljoeySeS seniunpioddo “uonorjsnes
pue ‘(Jusweunes Buipnjoxa) aokojdws pue ‘juswsalnel Buipnjoxe) juswfojdwe Jaulo o} anp ookojdws mo| 0} enp Ajewrd uopualey
Mo s1 18aouiny eakojdwy ojelopow si jeaouin) sekojdws | Auewud ybiy si sanown) sakojdwl uybiy s118A0uIn; 9940|dw] Iy

‘Hoddns 10§ 9nusae Jeo|o @ "solousjedwoo

pug ‘se|ous|olyje pue uoljezijeioads 105-{iys uodn paseq papiroid 'sjens| Buyje)s Jo/pue 8215 0) anp "sejouslolaU suonduasag
Bunealos pejenuasayip ),uale syuswubisse ybnoyye ‘painooo | pajeasn | uale salouepunpal jng ‘e pue saouepunpal bunesio je )l qor pajenusiayic
Aj|nj a1e suonduosap qop sey sqof uj uojenuaisyp swos | Ji op seakojdwe poddns (eawpa) | op seskojdwe poddns [ealuyos | oLy

: Kouepoiyg
pue Ayioedes) poddng Aredwexy

~ fouepoiy3
pue Ayoedes poddng Aiojoejsnes

s - Kouapay3
pue Ayoede) poddng papwiry

< Kousiayy
E_;go&aoto&:mu__c_ocon

{rugnriigds 34

[RROINSOJOLG PUE BUIEI R ] BURIQ) Sounjondy 1oddng poaojus j-aosy goy 1oddng - ) tivinog)

oxdls,

Yoo | o T




1102 ¥ dy uomsao g posoaddy voypnutwor)

"sjuawjsnipe eyew
0] pasn s| ejep ayj pue pyoddns
[eo1uyv9) 0) alj1oads ale payse
suofsany) “1esh ay) Jnoybnouy)
pa199]|0J S| BJR( "$1ey2I} ‘Ije 1e jou Jo uoneziuebio ~dn-mojjo4
pasojd pue uol3orysijes JawWosnd “Ajjeoiponied “Ajjenuue ey} uiyjim siom Aamins lati0)sny pue {yD)
$%oe1) Jey) waysAs anewone | Ajuo suop sie Aoy ‘JanamoH ‘pejonpuod | suop Ajuo sle pue pajewcine | usie [ejuawedap Jeyjo jo ped se aoueInssy Ajeny)
pue wopue. e Aq painsesw s| yp | s.e poddns [eojuyos) o) oyloads skeaing | Aeys Ing ‘pajonpuco aie skoans vo | Alessusb pajonpuoo aie skenng gLy
pabeinoous
‘UOHJBIIJIMSI SPIBMO] ‘Buiuies) peoueApe 105 ssniunpioddo ‘pabeinosus s ing palosuods ).ust Bues paoueapy
Buuten Buipnjou; ‘yuswhojdws paJosuods-joLsip ps)iwl sAey Jouisip 1,usi Buiuien pasueApy JOUISIP BU} Ul SBNSS! SjeIpaLULLl ye1s
118y jo yed |ewriou e se Bujurely pue senss) jusbiaws punose Buluies ‘sanss| Jushiawie punose Buluiel 8y jo e1eo oye) o) Bulies | [estuyoay Joy Buluger)
9|dwe saajasal Yejs |eojuysaj 1US)SISUOD SBAIB0D) Jels [eoluyas] | JusisISUOD SaA08l JB)S [e0IuYes | uanib Ajuo st yeys jeatuypa) | J1N
"84ny|n3 [euoneziuebio ay)
40 Med e1e pue suonauny yom ojul ‘21mno
Jinq a.fe suoneyasdxa aoueWIOMNa [euoneziuefio sy jo Jed se pejdope ‘a1n)|no |euoneziuebio Hels 11y
"adoas ul peoiq a1e pue paje|nanie u8sq Jou sARY Jnq '9dods ul peoiq sle '0doos uj pajiw ese jnq 8y} Jo Jed ) usle pue paulysp Joj suoneydedxy
Aueayd ale yeys ||e Jof suonepdadxy | pue psjenoe sie yess jo suonejoadxy | palenone ale Jeis jo suonejoadxy | Ajlesio J,usie ye)s jo suoneloadxg gL'y
*Ajus)sisuos pasn 'sonss| Buinjos 1o} wsiueyoow | uonezebio sy wym Aesysyes:
S| pue epim-uofjezjuebio Bujulen e se uolezuebio sy} Aq pajdope | pasn eq uea ji jey) 0s peuyal useq “soeld ojul
awn-uisnf 10§ paysijqe)se useq useq,usey inqg ‘soe(d ur st Buiuien | Jusey wejsks Aanjep pue sseooid Ind usaq sey wayshs Asnjsp | Bujures) swp-urysnp
sey wo)shs Aaljap pue ssasoud y swil-usnl 1oy Aiaaiep pue sseo0id y | 8yl Ing ‘pasn st Bulwes swg-urenpe | 10 sseooid Buiuie sw-ur-jsnioy | SLy
Kaueroiy3 % : - Rouao13 ; Koueioiyg ~ Kouspyg
u__a bau%o to&:m bw_asoxm . pue b_ou%o to&:m Kioyoejsneg pue Eo&uo to&:w E«_E_._ E_a b_ou%o yoddng jueiayeq

JRUOESSGOL PUEBUIIRL [ BUIUIS) S410008 1ieddng posotus y-1os1 Aoy woddng - uteruiog




1107 11 [ady uoisaoy poaoaddy vopjrauwo;)

“poddns [eajuyoay ‘weysis poddns weiboid uowdojanag
41im uolduN(uod u) Bsuajep Jo ‘Joddns [E0IUYID] B Y)M paouejeq leuossajoly
auj| jsuly e se pasn s| pue ‘weibord | |eouyos) Joj ABejess lolew e se pesn S| J,Us! pue einjeu i jeauyoe) Juswidojenep 8y jo uey
luawdojeAap |euoissejoid eyy | pue weiboid juewdojorsp [euoissajoid | o) 81 ing juswdojerep [euoiesejold [euoissajold Jo Jed palepisuoo se Bunooysajqnot}
ojul })jing si Buooysaejgnor Jiseq ay) ojul )jing s Bunooyssignol | ojul Jjinq st Bugoousajgnol | ),us Bugooyse|gnoy) oiseq 6L7
. Kouepayz Kouejoy3 Kouepoiyz Kousoyg
pue Ayoeden poddng KArejdwiexgy .Eu b_ou%u to%nm boﬁemauw * pue b_u&uo to&:m jusidyeq

pue %&J yoddng peywiry

(PUOGISSOOA L PUR Buitieg | "Suynig) soanionagg

;::;;:,_. a)

[EEE N

Foddng poaoiuo j-aasy

w 1aoiel




Appendix C - Network Security Assessment

Executive Summary

Imperial Valley College (IVC) was evaluated on their overall Technology infrastructure to analyze possible
flaws in the architecture and minimize the risk of a security breach. This assessment focuses primarily on

data networks and enterprise systems such as servers and dedicated appliances.

Each segment of the assessment will have a severity level assigned. IVC should use these levels to prioritize
the work that needs to be done after the completion of the assessment. The following levels will be used

throughout the document:

¢ Critical: This priority suggests that these areas should be addressed first and represents a potential
security concern.

* Moderate: This level of priority represents findings or configuration changes that will enhance the
performance of existing systems, but they don’t represent a significant security concern.

¢ Suggested: The areas marked with this priovity are findings that should be addressed when
resources are available.

Documentation
Severity Level = Critical

In general, system documentation is lacking and the existing records don’t seem to be up-to-date. System
documentation such as: network diagrams, master password lists, system configurations, wiring schematics
and an overall catalog of systems and services needs to be developed in order to minimize disruption of

services during outages.

Network

IVC has two locations that serve students in Imperial County. The main campus is large in size and houses
the technology infrastructure. A remote campus located in Calexico is connected to the main campus through
a T-1 circuit provisioned inside the network. Both locations are protected by one Cisco 5550 ASA firewall

that serves as the perimeter for the IVC network.

IVC connects to the Internet through a direct connection to the CENIC network and another connection
through the IVTA. This should provide IVC redundancy to the commodity Internet should one of the paths
fail. All Internet traffic flows through the firewall and through the use of access lists: IVC can control the

flow of traffic that enters the network.

IVC uses the Microsoft RAS to provide Virtual Private Network (VPN) servers to allow trusted users to
access IVC network resources from any network location through an encrypted channel. This service is

primarily used and limited to IT staff, I'T consultants and high-level managers.

Committee Approved: Version April 14, 2011



The largest entry point of the network is through the wireless network system. The college uses the
Extricom wireless solution to provide access to mobile devices to faculty and students. Security control

mechanisms ave applied at the HP internal switches through access lists.

The Calexico IVC campus is comprised of a few faculty computers, a computer lab and several classrooms
that connect via a T-1 to the main campus. Special attention to remote sites is required to ensure best

practices are followed and that unauthorized devices are not connected to the network.

Platform: Cisco Adaptive Security Appliance (ASA)
Model: 5550

Software Version: 7.2(2)

Severity level = Critical

After reviewing the firewall configuration, the following changes are recommended:

BRecommendations redacted due to security concerns.

IVC currently runs a single Cisco ASA 5550 firewall appliance. IVC should consider installing a second
firewall for redundancy purposes. The firewalls can be installed in an active-standby configuration to
provide hardware fault tolerance should one of the appliances fail. IVC should also ensure that this critical

link in the network has premium support from the manufacturer for quick replacement.

IVC uses the Microsoft RAS/VPN services in Windows 2003 server. This provides remote access to network
resources via an encrypted connection through this server. The server currently has two network interfaces,
one facing the internal network and another facing a DMZ on the firewall. Users authenticate using their
Active Directory account, which need to he members of the “secVPN” group, which currently has 37 users (8

disabled) accounts.

Recommendations:

Committee Approved: Version April 14, 2011



¢« The current physical server running the RAS services is probably about 6 to 7 years old and will
need to be replaced soon. It is recommended to move this security function to the firewall and have
all perimeter security handled by this device.
Severity level = Moderate

¢ Recommendations redacted due to security concerns. (Severity level = Critical)

e Remove disabled accounts from the secVPN group.

Severity level = Suggeste

Moderate

Severity

It 18 recommended that IVC consider moving server farms into a Demilitarized Zone (DMZ) connected to the

firewall. Recommendations redacted due 1o securily concerns.

The firewall is a dedicated appliance for this purpose and would centralized network security in one device.
Moving servers into a DMZ has many implications and this process would need to be planned carefully to

minimize down time to end users.

Severity Level = Moderate

The Calexico remote campus connects to the main campus via a T-1 line (1.54 Mbps). The capacity on this
telecommunications circuit is not adequate for today’s business requirements and it connects to very old
equipment that is subject to failure soon. It is recommended that IVC explore other alternatives to connect

the site with refreshed equipment that can provide more adequate bandwidth.

A thorough check of the campus should be done to ensure only authorized network devices are connected to

the network.

Severity level = Critical

Recommendations redacted due to security concerns.

Due to the large amount of network devices on the network, it is highly recommended that IVC explore a
solution to centralize authentication services to administer network devices. The solution should integrate
with MS Active Directory to support single sign-on, which means that technical administrators would use

their domain account to login to network devices.

A recommended solution is to explore the Network Policy Server embedded in the Windows 2008 server.

This new built-in feature provides RADIUS authentication that uses Active Directory to authenticate users.

Additional details can be obtained at: http://rwww.microsoft.com/windowsserver2008/en/us/security-

11871

Committee Approved: Version April 14, 2011



IVC’s internal network has multiple VLANSs created to isolate layer 2 broadcast domains. Connections
between switches are trunked to allow multiple VLAN traffic to return to the core and out to the Internet.
All switches appear to have the spanning-tree protocol turned on, which helps prevent network loops in the
topology. Network ports where an IP phone is connected should also be configured as a trunked port to allow

a computer to connect to the phone. The following are some low-level priority recommendations:

¢ Reduced the size of the IP subnet in most VLANs. Some VLAN’s are configured with address spaces
for 500 to 1000 nodes. It is unlikely to have this many nodes in one given VLAN and doing so would
be problematic. A more reasonable size is the Class C size of 253 hosts per VLAN.
Severity level = Suggesied
Update documentation to explain the different purposes of each VLAN. Severity level = Moderate

» Reserve the first 50 1P addresses in the available scope for static addresses. Severity level =
Suggested

e  When possible, use DHCP address reservation versus statically assigning the address to end nodes.
This does not apply to servers.
Severity level = Suggested

s Assign a unique PAT address on the firewall per internal VLAN. This will ease the identification of
source traffic from the outside perspective.
Severity level = Moderate

e Ensure a PTR DNS recorded is updated when a computer is leased a new IP address.
Severity level = Moderats

IVC currently uses the Hewlett Packard (HP) Procurve Manager software to manage their network switch
infrastructure. The software has access to all network devices in the campus. The system has the following

management functions through the console:

Configuration review and changes
Hardware configurations

SNMP trap collector

Create, manage and track policies
Real-time traffic

.« o » »

The IVC internal network provides switching and routing to support Internet Protocol (IP) through the main
campus and Calexico. The HP switches support the OSPF routing protocol operating on the backbone
switches across the campus. Virtual LANS or VLAN’s are used to separate the broadcast/collision domains
on the network and to provide a logical separation by building, departments or function on the network. For
example, VolP traffic (phones, gateways) is separated in a VLAN. All switches connect via trunked links in
order to pass multiple VLAN traffic. All switches have the Simple Network Management Protocol (SNMP)
turned on that allows the HP Procurve Manager to poll devices and extract relevant operational information.

It can also be used to configure devices from one central platform. The following are a few suggestions:

e HP Procurve Manager does not seem to keep historical records on network performance. This
information is useful to create baselines, understand traffic patterns and provide input for future
growth needs.

Severity Level = Suggested

Committee Approved: Version April 14, 2011



¢ E-mail alerts should be configured so key IT staff is alerted if there is a problem on the network.
This should assist in resolving problems in a more timely fashion and avoid unnecessary disruption
of services.
Severity Level = Moderated

¢« SNMP traps should be configured and collected by a syslog server to capture errors generated by
network devices. This provides insight on issues occurring on the network and is a great resource for
troubleshooting network problems.
Severity level = Moderate

¢ A golution to complement the features of HP Procurve Manager and address the recommendations
above is suggested. Two popular products on the market are WhatsUpGold or Orion from
Solarwinds.
Severity Level = Suggested

IVC recently implemented a wireless solution from Extricom during the network refresh project. This
solution consists of a controller per wiring closet where Access Points connect. There is a centralized

management console to control all aspects of the wireless network to include SSID, encryption, VLANS, etc.

Available wireless networks are broadcasted and include encryption to secure traffic. Access control for
wireless users is applied on the HP switches at the VLAN level. An open wireless network is available for
the public to connect with limited access to the internal campus but does provide Internet connectivity. The
following are recommendations to take into consideration:

¢ IVC should explore the possibility of replacing the existing wireless solution. The Extricom solution
does not scale well and staff has indicated that support for the product is lacking.
Severity Level = Moderate

¢ IVC should move away from applying access lists on the internal switches to protect. internal
network resources from unauthorized users that are latched to the wireless network. One approach
is to use the wireless controller to provide this level of security; a second approach would be to move
the entire wireless network to the outside of the firewall and use it to apply access rules to inside
resources.
Severity Levael = Moderate

¢ IVC should consider end-user authentication mechanisms to control users that are authorized to
access the wireless network. If possible, authentication should be done against Active Directory via
LDAP connectors.
Severity Level = Critical

IVC recently modernized their data-cabling infrastructure and has a very solid, well design infrastructure
that should last for many years. All cables are well organized. and are routed and identified inside proper
enclosures. The only recommendation is to develop good documentation of cable paths, distribution facilities
and manhole locations.

Server/Desktop Security

Committee Approved: Version April 14, 2011



End-user accounts and passwords are created and assigned by the technology department. This practice is
very common for I'T shops, although it does not scale well and has a potential for a security breach. Some
end-users are aware that they have the capabilities to change their own password, while many others call
the IT staff to have their password changed. IVC may want to follow these recommendations:

e Create policies and procedures around the use and maintenance of passwords. They should outline
clear expectations around the use of passwords, change mechanisms, length and strength, resetting,
age, etc.

Severity level = Moderate

¢ End-user should be given a generic (but secure) password when the account is ereated and force
them to change the password the first time they log in.
Severity Level = Suggested

e Tech staff should use their own account to access staff computers for troubleshooting and
maintenance.

Severity level = Moderate

e Provide users with clear instructions on how to change passwords. The IT staff should promote good
security practices to end-users and encourage them to change their passwords frequently.
Severity level = Suggested

e IVC may adopt a policy to have passwords change every certain period. For example, users are forced
to change passwords once a year.

Severity level = Suggested

e Enforce password policies via Active Directory Group Policies.
Severity level = Suggested

e IVC should determine the appropriate level of staff authorized to change user passwords.
Severity level = Moderate

Severity Level = Critical

Most if not all the Windows servers in the IVC campus are accessible via the Microsoft’s Remote Desktop
protocol (RDP). This easy-to-use tool allows IT staff to access the server console to perform administrative
tasks. Because the servers are located on the same internal network as faculty and staff, extra security
measures need to be taken so that servers are not exposed to unauthorized access. In reviewing the Active
Directory Users and Groups, it does appear that IVC has created a special security group that is used to
control RDP access to the servers. 1T staff need to ensure each server is configured so that only authorized
access to servers occurs via RDP. This same philosophy should apply to the local server security roles; only

the authorized groups should have administrative privileges over the server to minimize the potential of a

security breach.

IVC uses the Sophos anti-virus solution to protect desktop and server computers. A handful of old servers
continue to run the Symantec product, which appears to be the prior version of anti-virus software being
used. During the discovery process, for the most part all servers and workstations had the Sophos agent

installed and signature files up-to-date.

Committee Approved: Version April 14, 2011



IT staff should provide administrations with periodic reports from the anti-virus management
platform. Examples of such reports are: (Severity Level = Suggested)

o Compliance reports (protected systems, signature files)

o Threats that have been mitigated

o Top tens

o Attack vectors (Trojans, e-mail, phishing, key loggers, etc.)

Signature files should be updated regularly throughout the day and should balance between
resources available and the acceptable risk. The larger the number of systems, the more network
traffic and resources are needed to keep all systems with current signature files.

5 ity Jevel = Moderate

IVC should also build capacity to deploy an anti-virus solution that covers other operating systems
other than Windows. A good example is the web server that runs a Linux operating system.

Severity level = Suggested

IVC owns the KACE KBOX appliance that allows for the management of desktop lifecycle. This multi-
function appliance provides technical staff with tools to effectively manage desktops and perform several

tasks such as:

s & & * o @

Perform and maintain computer inventory (hardware and software)

N IR

Software distribution

Remote support tools

Schedule and deploy security patches, system updates or new releases
Ticket management

Power management

During interviews with staff, it does not appear that IVC has embraced the tool to its full potential. Desktop

and server patching is an ad-hoc approach and not very effective. The following could assist in the process:

.

Assess the current functions the KBOX is currently doing and develop a plan to allow the appliance
to bring additional efficiencies.

Severity level = Moderate

Develop a deployment strategy to include key staff and a realistic time frame for full
implementation. The plan should progressively implement features of the KBOX appliance until
they satisfy the needs of IVC.

Severity Level = Moderate

Provide adequate training for technical staff on the use of the appliance. Severity Level = Moderate

Back-end Services

IVC runs Microsoft Active Directory (AD) to run directory services for the campus. Two Windows 2008

servers are running AD in a clustered environment and replication seems to be working well. Internal DNS

is currently integrated into the AD infrastructure although some issues were found with internal DNS

replication. Both AD servers are running as Global Catalog servers (GC), which is a desired environment to

Committee Approved: Version April 14, 2011



provide resiliency. The following key recommendations need to be followed to correct existing issues and

avoid potential problems in the future:

» Raise the AD Forest/Domain functional level to Windows 2008. It’s currently running at Windows
2003 functional level.
Severity Level = Moderate

+ Have the operations master server (IVC1) synchronize its clock with a reliable NTP server. Since all
client computers synchronize their time to this server, it is critical that this server’s clock is as
accurate as possible. Currently it shows a difference of approximately 2 minutes. The following link
provides instructions on how to do this: (Ssverity Level =
Critical) http://support.microsoft.com/kh/816042

Severity Level =

Recommendations redacted due to security concerns.

Accessing servers via the console or remotely.
Adding computers to the domain.

Manage user accounts and groups.

Server patching or updating.

Manage network services such as DHCP and DNS.

* & * » o

Recommendations redacted due to security concerns.

Similar to the DA account, Active Directory contains Domain Administrators Group (DAG). This group
shares the same administrative privileges to the DA account. Only high-level managers that require
unrestricted access to manage the directory should be part of this group. The college should strongly

consider the following suggestions:

¢ Change the DA account password as soon as possible. This account credentials should only be held
by key personnel at IVC. This password should be changed on a regular basis (every year at
minimumj.

o Recommendations redacted due to security concerns,

¢+ Review the members of the DAG group and remove anyone that doesn’t have a need to manage the
directory services. Special consideration should be given to consultants and ex-employees.

¢ It appears the college has created an IVC Admins group and is encouraged to implement and use
such group to manage servers and day-to-day operations of the enterprise infrastructure. This group
could have local administrative privileges on servers, allowing members full administration using
their domain account.

+ Implement delegation at the Organization Unit in AD. This allows a technician or employee to have
certain administrative access over certain portions of Active Directory structure. This minimizes
exposure to the enterprise infrastructure and provides the flexibility of having multiple staff
managing the directory services in their respective political domain.

Severity Level = Moderate
IVC uses a Windows 2003 server to provide dynamic IP addresses to client computers. IVC should consider
the following recommendations:

Committee Approved: Version April 14, 2011



¢ Add the DHCP server to the domain. The server is currently a standalone server.

¢ Ensure scavenging is turned on. This feature will allow the DHCP database to purge old records,
maintain consistency and avoid IP conflicts.

¢ The server uses the Domain Administrator (DA) account to be an authorized server for the
imperial.edu domain. This should be corrected before the DA password is changed.

DNS services are critical for the proper operation of directory services and client access to resources, both
internally and to the Internet. IVC currently has two DNS servers to respond to client requests. There are a

couple of corrections that should be made for optimal functionality:

s Correct DNS replication problems between IVC1 and IVC2 for the imperial.edu forward lookup zone
and all reverse lookup zones. Currently both servers are not synchronized with internal DNS records
since the zones are not configured to transfer and notify their peer server when changes occur.
Severity level = Critical

» Turn on the scavenging feature on the IVC1 internal DNS server. This feature allows the DNS
server to purge old entries in the DNS table. In reviewing the table, some records have a time stamp
of approximately a year ago or longer.

Severity level = Moderate

¢ Ensure that all IP subnets (VLLANs) have a reverse lookup zone in DNS. There were approximately 5
reverse lookup zones, which does not mateh the VLLAN's currently documented.
Severity level = Moderate

Severity level = Moderate

IVC currently runs two public facing DNS servers that host the imperial.edu domain. This is standard
industry practice and seems to work well for IVC. The servers sit on the public network with no firewall
protection. It is recommended that IVC explore more cost effective solutions for hosting public DNS. One
possible option is to host the zone files with the domain registrar or with the Imperial Valley
Telecommunications Authority (IVTA). IVC should analyze the pros and cons to this approach.

Another possible approach is to convert the server over to a virtual server environment, which would allow

the college to have local DNS control without having dedicated equipment for this purpose.

IVC has a dedicated file server that allows users to share and store files in a centralized location. One
Windows 2008 server with ample storage (6 Terabytes) provides Windows files shares to IVC departments

and users.

Severity level = Moderate

Committee Approved: Version April 14, 2011



IVC currently runs a centralized print server where all printers are connected. Users then connect to this

server and choose the appropriate printer on the network to use. The servers currently running this
operation are 6 to 7 years old. IVC should consider replacing or virtualize the server to avoid potential

downtime for all users,

Severity level = Critical

IVC currently uses Backup Exec as their platform to perform data backups jobs. The IVCBK1 server is

running Windows 2003 with the Symantec Backup Exec version 12.5. This enterprise platform does appear

to have a Microsoft Exchange plug-in that allows the system to backup the message store while online.

Another server named VM2 is used as a file server to store backups for the Banner system.

*

.

Backup files are being stored in external storage attached to the backup server.
There are four different backup jobs:
o Data and Infrastructure — Daily
*  Type: Incremental
=  Servers included: IVC2 and Fileserver
*  Retention Policy: None
o Data and Infrastructure — Weekly
= Type: Full
= Servers included: IVC2 and Fileserver
=  Retention Policy: None
o Daily Exchange - Daily
=  Type: Full
= Servers included: Email.imperial.edu
=  Components: First and Second Storage Group
*  Retention Policy: None
o Quarterly Archive Data and Infrastructure
= Type: Full
= Servers included: IVC2 and Fileserver
*  Retention Policy: None

Backup jobs only include 3 of possibly 20 or more production servers in the environment. Exchange,

*
User files and one domain controller (IVC2) are the only servers that are currently backed up. All
critical servers need to have the Backup Exec agent installed and configured.
Severity level = Critical

o The external storage on the IVCBK1 is currently out of space. This may prevent other backup jobs to
complete successfully. Old backup files should be purged to make space for more recent backups.
Severity level = Critical

+ Retention policies should be configured in the backup system so it can automatically discard old
backup files and eliminate the manual work.
Severity level = Moderate

¢ IVC should explore a backup solution that can support multiple operating systems and use

technologies such as de-duplication.
Severity level = Moderate

Committee Approved: Version April 14, 2011



¢ JVC should implement an off-site backup strategy to transport critical information outside the
campus environment if possible.
Severity level = Moderate

¢ The backup server appeared to have external USB drives connected for additional storage capacity.
USB interfaces may not be adequate for fast data transfers or as reliable as SCSI or SAS interfaces.
IVC may want to consider upgrading these storage devices.
Severity level = Suggested

E-mail System

IVC currently hosts Microsoft Exchange server as their electronic messaging and collaboration platform.
Exchange 2007 currently serves approximately 500 mailboxes for staff and faculty that are primarily

accessed via the Microsoft Outlook client.

End-users may also access the Exchange system via the Outlook Web Access (OWA) web interface, which
allows users to check e-mail with a standard web browser. This also provides the framework for users to

access their e-mail through mobile devices via Active Sync.

IVC uses the Barracuda Spam Firewall appliance to filter inbound and cutbound mail for spam and viruses.
End-users have the option to customize their filter settings to accommodate specific needs outside the

general configuration settings of the filter.

The Microsoft Exchange 2007 server currently has all 4 roles installed within one server (Hub, Transport,
Client, Mailbox). This setup is common and adequate for an organization the size of IVC. Exchange services
run on a Dell PowerEdge 2950 running Windows 2003 server with 8 GB of RAM and 6 x 146 GB (15K) hard
drives. The server was installed in 2007 and has 4-hour on-site premium warranty that expires in May of
2012.

Severity Level= Critical

IVC currently has no per-mailbox storage limitations configured in the system defaults settings. Space on
the hard drive is currently at two-thirds capacity and IVC runs the risk of filling the hard drive space very
quickly. IVC should do an assessment of space per mailbox and perform capacity planning to avoid running
out of disk space.

The following command can be used in the Exchange Management Shell to provide a list of mailboxes sorted

by size. Unfortunately, Exchange 2007 does not provide this feature via the GUI:

Get-MailboxStatistics | Sort-Object TotalltemSize -Descending | ft
DisplayName,@{label="Totalltem Size(KB) jexpression={§_. Totalltem Size. Value. ToKB()}} Item Count

Committee Approved: Version April 14, 2011



The first storage group where all the mailboxes reside is currently close to 200GB and most mailboxes are at
approximately 1.5 GB of space, with a few well above 3 GB. One approach is to set a common storage limit
for all mailboxes or set different tiers of storage limits and set criteria for how users would qualify for the

different tiers.

Severity level = Moderate

Exchange is running on a single server with redundant power supplies and multiple hard drives in a RAID
configuration. The server is protected from the most common failures (power and hard drives) but IVC
should consider strengthening other single point of failures on the server. Technologies such as

virtualization or clustering should be considered to minimize communication downtime.

IVC should consider the following recommendations:

e Disable the Post Office Protocol v3 (POP3) on the Exchange server. This is an old protocol used to
retrieve messages from the server via a POP3 client such as Outlook Express or others.
Severity level = Suggested

¢ There is a large amount of distribution groups that should be reviewed for accuracy.
Severity level = Suggested

e Set attachment size limits (10 — 20 Mbytes) to prevent large files entering the mail system. Transfer
of large files should use a different mechanism of transport.
Severity level = Suggested

IVC uses the Barracuda Spam Firewall product line to scan inbound and outbound e-mail traffic using a

physical appliance for each direction. A summary of the products:

Inbound Mail Cutbound Mail
Model: Barracuda 400 Model: Barracuda 300
Hostname: spamcheck.imperial.edu Hostname: oldspam.imperial.edu
IP address: 10.1.1.2060 IP address: 10.1.1.201
Firmware version: 3.5.12.012 Firmware version 3.5.12.025

The Barracuda product line has demonstrated over time to be very resilient and very good at blocking
unwanted messages into the messaging infrastructure. After reviewing the configuration on the appliances,

it is recommended the college do the following:

Committee Approved: Version April 14, 2011



¢« Upgrade the firmware on both spam firewall appliances. The latest irmware update will consist on a
major upgrade to Version 4.x which provides a new streamlined interface, new features and bug
fixes.

Severity level = Moderate

s Create a new DNS record for the outbound mail instead of oldspam.imperial.edu.
Severity level = Moderate

¢« Configure the appliance for LDAP/Exchange user integration. This feature provides two important
features (Severity level = Moderate):

o Integrates users on the spam firewall with the Active Directory account. This way, users can
login to the spam firewall (customize spam settings, review quarantine) with their e-mail
address and domain password.

It provides a mechanism for the spam firewall to check the recipient list before accepting e-

mail for a valid e-mail address. Without this feature, the spam firewall has no way to know if

the recipients are valid and creates a quarantine account for invalid users as well. When
reviewing the user list on the spam firewall, it currently has about 3,443 user quarantine
accounts, when most likely only 500 of those accounts are valid. This creates unnecessary
overhead and puts additional load on the appliances.

¢ Create an SPF record in DNS to identify authorized mail servers for the imperial.edu domain. This
optional verification process is being adopted worldwide as a mechanism to identify trusted servers
and help minimize e-mail spam.

Severity level = Moderate

o If economically possible, purchase another Barracuda Spam firewall appliance (model 400) to cluster
with the current appliance and provide hardware redundancy.
Severity level = Moderate

+ Internal and external hostnames in the DNS tables do not match. This hostname should match
according to the configuration of the appliance.
Heverity level = Critical

o

IVC runs the Blackberry Enterprise Server (BES) to support Blackberry device synchronization with
Exchange server. There are currently 10 users on the BES server and a few of these users have been inactive
for several months. It is recommended that the college revisit their strategy for supporting mobile devices
such as Blackberry phones. An alternative solution is using Exchange’s Active Sync to synchronize with

mobile devices.

Other Recommendations

Severity Level = Moderate

In general, all servers are in need of software and/or hardware maintenance. A couple of servers have

warning lights indicating some type of hardware failure. During the discovery process, most if not all servers

Committee Approved: Version April 14, 2011



required system updates to correct security flaws or provide new features. It is recommended that a routine
maintenance schedule be established for the servers. This schedule should keep in mind that servers will
need to be rebooted from time to time and that it may impact end-users. It's not uncommon to schedule these

maintenances windows outside regular business hours.

Severity Level = Moderat

e¥]

IVC should continue its server consolidation effort through the use of virtualization technology. Given the
diverse environment, it is important to choose a platform that supports different guest operating systems
such as Linux and Windows. A platform such as Xen or VMWare would allow IVC to consolidate many of

their servers into three or four physical servers with a common storage system.

This platform should also provide more options for IVC to strengthen it’s disaster recovery initiative and

simplify processes to ensure data is protected and secure.

Severity Level = Suggested

IVC should re-evaluate technology systems that relate to the control/inspection of facility systems such as
HVAC, surveillance and access control. From reviewing the firewall configurations and interviewing staff, it
appears several disparate systems (and possibly duplicated systems) exist to control such facilities with
minimal involvement of the IT staff. There should be a broader strategy in place that includes the
technology staff in the planning and installation of such systems. These systems should be scalable and use

the IP network as much as possible.

Severity Level = Moderate

IVC currently redirects all external DNS requests to the OpenDNS servers. This {ree service is effective to
block access to inappropriate sites but does not really provide visibility on what types of traffic are flowing
through the network. Because IVC operates in a higher education environment, inappropriate use of
network resources, such as copyright infringements, are commonplace. IVC should explore the option of
installing a system that can provide better visibility to the types for traffic flowing through the network.
This will provide the tools to understand traffic patterns, prioritize legitimate traffic, block unwanted

protocols and will aid tremendously when investigating a potential violation.

Committee Approved: Version April 14, 2011



T %

Next bteps

e

Z

This document can serve as a guide to administration on the next logical steps to enhance security and
improve uptime and reliability. The perimeter network should be the first area of focus and ensure only
necessary network traffic is allowed. The second area of focus should be on the need to improve the
enterprise infrastructure such as servers, data backups, storage systems, Active Directory and other back-

end systems. The third area of focus should be to strengthen internal security and access to critical systems

such as the financial and student system.

Committee Approved: Version April 14, 2011



